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GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES 

   
DESIGN-BUILD SERVICES 

RENOVATION OF THE OAK HILL CAMPUS 

Solicitation #: DCAM-13-CS-0115 
 

Addendum No. 2 
Issued:  February 15, 2013 

 
 This Addendum Number 02 is issued by e-mail on February 15, 2013.  Except as 
modified hereby, the Request for Proposals (“RFP”) remains unmodified. 
 
Item #1 
 
RFP Narrative Scope of Work Revisions: 
 

1. The Department has determined that Building #1 should be left in place and renovated 
(rather than demolished and replaced).  

2. In order to increase energy efficiency for each building, Offerors may need to consider 
the replacement of all existing windows. 

3. Offerors shall assume that the existing facility and site condition at the time of the site-
visit may differ to some extent by the time of contract award. Please note, however, that 
during the design and preconstruction phase of this project, the selected design-
builder will work with the stakeholders to develop an appropriate design and scope 
of work that fits within the project budget. 

 
Item #2 
 
Revised Bid Form: The revised bid form discussed in Addendum No. 1 was inadvertently not 
attached to that addendum. Please see such form included here. 
 
Item #3 
 
Requests for Information:  Below is a list of questions and the Department’s responses.   
 

1. The proposed schedule for this procurement is to start design and preconstruction 
services on March 1, 2013, and complete the design and GMP pricing (approved by the 
Council) by April 1, 2013.  In addition, the construction work must be substantial 
completed by June 18, 2013.  This procurement schedule is extremely aggressive for the 
extent of work to be done.  As a result, the designers and subcontractors will not 
participate in providing their services for this project.  Please provide a more considerable 
schedule, so we are not limiting the services from the designers and/or subcontractors. 
Response: The Substantial Completion Date is a function of the start date for the 
Capital Guardian Youth Challenge Academy, a program developed and managed 
by the DC National Guard. As such, this date cannot be changed.   
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2. Explain the metering of utilities? Are buildings to be sub-metered for electric and water 

OR separate main meter for each building. Response: All 12 buildings within the site 
will have a singular metering system for electric and water; effectively one bill for 
electric and another for water. Offerors shall identify and upgrade existing system 
per all applicable codes and regulatory guidelines.  

 
3. Define FF&E and advice as to what is to be provided by Owner? Response: Refer to 

specifications attachment for bunk beds (100 minimum), clothes washing machine 
and dryers (counts TBD; dependent of approved design). 

 
4. Section J.2 “Trade Subcontractor Bonds” states that all trade subcontractors provide a 

payment & performance bond for 100% of the cost. Since contracting with CBE firms 
that are small, at what minimum value does a subcontractor have to be bonded? Is there a 
pricing cap that would allow the small subcontractors a waiver of this requirement? 
Response: Please see Section 10.2 of the Form of Contract issued with Addendum 1.   

 
5. What authority has jurisdiction for code? Response: The District of Columbia has 

jurisdiction over construction permit and inspections. However, all tasks and or 
issues related to storm water management, drainage, or abatement/hazmat must go 
through Maryland Department of Environment. 

 
6. Please define DCRA’s involvement of all permits and the turnaround time, as the impact 

of the turnaround in approval of permits will impact the delay and schedule of the project. 
Response: Offerors should consider processing multiple permits for the Project – 
for example, obtaining a separate demolition permit while the design is in process, 
to streamline the construction schedule. The District will assist, to the extent 
possible, but the Design-Builder is responsible for the permits. Therefore, the 
Offerors should engage DCRA for more information on potential turnaround time. 

 
7. Are rendering of the proposed design to be submitted with bid? If so, please provide as-

builds for the buildings. Response: No. A written description of approach to 
completing this work will suffice. 

 
8. Please provide a hazmat report for the roof and windows for all buildings. Response: 

The District does not have such information. Offerors shall assume that the roof 
material contains asbestos. In the process of waterproofing the roof, Offerors may 
add on to the existing roof finish (assuming it currently contains less than two ply 
finish). Offerors shall explore any and all available methods to waterproof the roof 
and encapsulate existing roof finish. Otherwise, roof replacement shall be included 
in the design-build budget of $4.5 million. 

 
9. Please provide the age of the roof of all buildings. Are the roofs still under the 

manufacture warranty? Response: The roofs are no longer under warranty.  The ages 
are unknown. 
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10. By past experience on this project, please confirm that structural defects have been 
completed. Response: The District is unable affirm the status of structural defects. 
The cost of fixing any and all defects shall be included in the design-build budget of 
$4.5 million. 

 
11. Will commercial grade vinyl windows be an acceptable replacement? Response: Yes; 

commercial grade vinyl windows designed to match existing are acceptable. 
 

12. Please advice the extent required for outdoor lighting between the buildings. Response: 
Outdoor lighting will be required to the extent necessary to provide a safe after dark 
environment. 
 

13. Based on statement made at the walk through, the gas services to the building are not to 
be reused and the buildings are to be all electric including the heating. The original 
electric services for the buildings were not sized to accommodate electric heat. The 
buildings were designed to utilize gas heat. Conversion to all electric heat may result in 
the existing services being undersized and require replacement. Response: The District 
stated at the walk through that there is no gas service to the facility now. Offeror’s 
design solution may include gas service – assuming it is cost effective and within 
budget. 

 
Item #4 
 
The bid date remains unchanged. Proposals are due by February 20, 2013 at 2:00 pm EST.  
Proposals that are hand-delivered should be delivered to the attention of: Kesha James, Contract 
Specialist, at Frank D. Reeves Center, 2000 14th Street, NW, 8th floor, Washington, DC 
20009.   

 
- End of Addendum No. 2 - 

 



Attachment B 
 

[Offeror’s Letterhead] 
 
[Insert Date] 
 
District of Columbia Department of General Services 
2000 14th Street, NW 
Washington, D.C. 20009 
 
Att’n:  Mr. Brian J. Hanlon 
  Director 
 
Reference:   Request for Proposals 
  Design-Build Services – Renovation of the Oak Hill Campus 
  
Dear Mr. Hanlon: 
 
On behalf of [INSERT NAME OF BIDDER] (the “Offeror”), I am pleased to submit this 
proposal in response to the Department of General Services’ (the “Department” or “DGS”) 
Request for Proposals (the “RFP”) to provide design-build services for the renovation of the Oak 
Hill Campus.  The Offeror has reviewed the RFP and the attachments thereto, any addenda 
thereto, and the proposed Form of Contract (collectively, the “Bid Documents”) and has 
conducted such due diligence and analysis as the Offeror, in its sole judgment, has deemed 
necessary in order to submit its Proposal in response to the RFP.  The Offeror’s proposal, the 
Design Fee, the Preconstruction Fee, and the Design-Build Fee (as defined in paragraph A) and 
the Unit Price (as defined in paragraph B) are based on the Bid Documents as issued and assume 
no material alteration of the terms of the Bid Documents.  (Collectively, the proposal, the Design 
Fee, the Preconstruction Fee, the Design-Build Fee, and the Unit Price are referred to as the 
“Offeror’s Bid”.)   
 
The Offeror’s Bid is as follows: 
 

A. The Design Fee is:      $ ____________________ 
 
The Preconstruction Fee is:     $ ____________________ 

 
 The Design-Build Fee is:     $ ____________________ 
 
The Offeror acknowledges and understands that the Design Fee, the Preconstruction Fee, and the 
Design-Build Fee are firm, fixed prices and other than as permitted in the Form of Contract will 
not be subject to further adjustment.  The Offeror also acknowledges that ten (10%) of the 
Design-Build Fee is at-risk and the selected Offeror will only be entitled to such amount as set 
forth in the Form of Contract. The Design-Build Fee includes funds sufficient to cover the cost 
of the Offeror’s general conditions, which will NOT be reimbursable. 
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B. The Unit Price to abate (encapsulate, remove and  

dispose) one (1) square foot of floor tile is:  $ ___________/sq. ft____ 
 

C. In addition, the Offeror hereby represents that, based on its current rating with its 
surety, the indicated cost of a payment and performance bond is [INSERT 
PERCENTAGE]. 

 
The Offeror’s Bid is based on and subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The Offeror agrees to hold its proposal open for a period of at least one hundred twenty 
(120) days after the date of the bid. 
 
2. Assuming the Offeror is selected by the Department and subject only to the changes 
requested in paragraph 5, the Offeror agrees to enter into a contract with the Department on the 
terms and conditions described in the Bid Documents within ten (10) days of the notice of the 
award.  In the event the Bidder fails for do so, the Department shall have the right to levy upon 
the Offeror’s bid bond. 
 
3. Both the Offeror and the undersigned represent and warrant that the undersigned has the 
full legal authority to submit this bid form and bind the Offeror to the terms of the Offeror’s Bid.  
The Offeror further represents and warrants that no further action or approval must be obtained 
by the Offeror in order to authorize the terms of the Offeror’s Bid.  In addition to any other 
remedies that the Department may have at law or in equity, the Department shall have the right 
to levy upon Bidder’s Bid Bond in the event of a breach of this paragraph 3. 
 
4. The Offeror and its principal team members hereby represent and warrant that they have 
not: (i) colluded with any other group or person that is submitting a proposal in response to the 
RFP in order to fix or set prices; (ii) acted in such a manner so as to discourage any other group 
or person from submitting a proposal in response to the RFP; or (iii) otherwise engaged in 
conduct that would violate applicable anti-trust law. 
 
5. The Offeror’s proposal is subject to the following requested changes to the Form of 
Contract: [INSERT REQUESTED CHANGES.  OFFERORS ARE ADVISES THAT THE 
CHANGES SO IDENTIFIED SHOULD BE SPECIFIC SO AS TO PERMIT THE 
DEPARTMENT TO EVALUATE THE IMPACT OF THE REQUESTED CHANGES IN ITS 
REVIEW PROCESS.  GENERIC STATEMENTS, SUCH AS “A MUTUALLY ACCEPTABLE 
CONTRACT” ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE.  OFFERORS ARE FURTHER ADVISED THAT 
THE DEPARTMENT WILL CONSIDER THE REQUESTED CHANGES AS PART OF THE 
EVALUATION PROCESS.] 
 
6.  The Offeror hereby certifies that neither it nor any of its team members have entered into 
any agreement (written or oral) that would prohibit any contractor, subcontractor or sub-
consultant that is certified by the District of Columbia Office of Department of Small and Local 
Business Enterprises as a Local, Small, Resident Owned or Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
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(collectively, “LSDBE Certified Companies”) from participating in the work if another company 
is awarded the contract. 
 
7. This bid form and the Offeror’s Bid are being submitted on behalf of [INSERT FULL 
LEGAL NAME, TYPE OF ORGANIZATION, AND STATE OF FORMATION FOR THE 
OFFEROR]. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
By: ____________________ 
Name: ____________________ 
Its: ____________________ 
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